
 
 

 
 

1 

APPROVED at the January 31, 2011 Bristol Budget Committee Meeting 

BRISTOL BUDGET COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES 

January 17, 2011 

PRESENT: 

Shaun Lagueux-Chairman, Paul Simard-Vice Chairman, Barbara Greenwood, Dorcas Gordon, Jon Thouin, 
Ron Preble, Mark Chevalier, Dan Arseneau, Selectman Jeff Shackett, Wendy Costigan, Dave Carr 

ABSENT:   

Tom Keegan, Ashley Dolloff  

OTHERS PRESENT:   

Town Administrator Michael Capone, CIP Chairman Murray Campbell, Selectman Donald Milbrand  

CALL TO ORDER: 

Chairman Lagueux called the meeting to order at 7:05pm. 

REVIEW OF MINUTES: 

The meeting began with a review of the minutes from January 10, 2011; Vice Chairman Simard made a 
motion to accept the minutes as written and was seconded by Mr. Preble. A vote to accept the minutes as 
written was passed with 10 in favor and 1 abstention. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

No old business was brought up and Chairman Lagueux continued onto new business. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

Chairman Lagueux began the meeting by thanking the committee for the work they have done during this 
deliberation process.  He also thanked the Select Board and Department Heads for bringing in the budget 
that they did. 
 
Town Administrator Capone prepared an updated budget, which includes most of the year-end expenses 
and the changes the Budget Committee passed in the last two weeks.  Chairman Lagueux noted that 2010 
ended under budget.  Town Administrator Capone stated that is subject to change due to some 
encumbrances and a few outstanding items.  Vice Chairman Simard asked the Town Administrator what is 
the net effect on the tax rate.  In response he was told it was too difficult to give specific rate at this time 
there are still too many changes to take place regarding the tax rate.  The rate should be lower than last 
year’s rate but many things affect the tax rate so it is difficult to be definite at this time. 
 
 
CIP ITEMS 
Selectman Shackett explained that the CIP were discussed at the last Select Board meeting and the police 
cruiser and ¾ Ton Highway truck is now listed in line items 4902-760 and 4902-761 respectively.  The 
generator for the Fire Department is listed in the 4902 Capital Equipment section.  The Appraisal/Tax 
Collection Software is shown in the 4909 Other Capital Outlay section of the budget.  Selectman Shackett 
stated that he would add comments from the Select Board when each item is discussed. 



 
 

 
 

2 

 
Mr. Chevalier made a motion to the stated budget amount of $96,350 for the Capital Equipment portion of 
the budget.  This would include the 2011 Police Cruiser, the ¾ Ton Highway Department Truck, and the 
Generator for the Fire Department. This motion was withdrawn because the police cruiser was approved at 
the 1/10/11 meeting. 
 
Mr. Chevalier amended the 1/10/11 motion to increase the Capital Equipment from the $34,200 to $96,350 
to add the ¾ ton Highway truck and the Fire Department’s Generator.  Selectman Shackett seconded the 
amendment.   Mr. Chevalier added that he thought the CIP did an excellent with their presentation and we 
should continue to follow their recommendations.   This passed unanimously with 11 in favor. 
 
Selectmen Shackett made a motion to increase the Other Capital Outlay from zero to $20,000 for the 
purchase of the Tax/Appraisal Collection software.  Mr. Chevalier seconded the motion.   Mr. Arseneau 
stated that this seems to be a lot of money for software that doesn’t meet all the needs.   Selectmen 
Shackett stated that it incorporates the tax collector’s and the appraisal department work thus eliminating 
the double entry system currently in use.  This software has excellent local support and many towns are 
successfully using it.  Chairman Lagueux asked if it would have local access for land map use.  Town 
Administrator Capone that the software has the option but currently the town is not looking to install that 
option.  It is something that is being seriously considered for a future time.  Selectman Shackett added that 
this is a big project and the Selectmen will advocate for the public access but not this year. 
 
Chairman Lagueux called for a vote on the motion to increase the Other Capital Outlay to $20,000 for the 
purchase Tax/Appraisal software.   This passed with 11 in favor. 
 
This concludes the deliberation of the budget.  Voting on the bottom line of the budget will take place after 
the public hearing.   
 
REVIEW OF CIP ITEMS 
1.  Paving of Fire Station parking lot was included in the Highway Department’s paving budget. 
2.  Police Cruiser – included in budget 
3.  Paving of Roads – requested $335,600 
 Included $241,088 in budget.  The department head has stated that the roads with the greatest 
 need will get paved and he has alternate ways of meeting the paving needs for the other roads. 
 The price of paving is very difficult to estimate but as much paving as possible will be done within 
 this stated amount. 
4.  Set aside money in capital reserve for a 6 wheel dump truck – not included in budget 
5.  Generator for the Fire Department – this is partially funded through a grant and is included in the budget. 
6.  Replace Highway Truck with ¾ Ton truck – included in budget 
7.  Set aside money in capital reserve for a new Ambulance – not included in budget 
8.  Old Town Hall repairs – not included in budget 
9.  Appraisal Software – included in software 
10. Set aside money in capital reserve for the purchase of an ambulance – not included in budget 
 Selectman Shackett stated the Select Board realizes this is an important need and would suggest 
 purchasing a new Ambulance in 2012 with a 2-year lease/purchase contract. 
 
Vice Chairman Simard inquired about the Old Town Hall.  Selectman Shackett stated that the Select Board 
appreciate the historic value of the building and recognize the need for repairing it.  However, before any 
money is spent on the building a long-range plan needs to be established including an estimate of the cost 
of repairs.  Ms. Greenwood suggested that a grant for the historic building is available to restore it.  Mr. 
Thouin asked if some money needs to be provided to preserve the building while this long-range plan is 
being established?  Mr. Campbell the CIP wanted to bring the building and its most pressing repairs to the 



 
 

 
 

3 

attention of the Town.  He added that we could have a plan and check off the completed items; or we could 
do nothing and deem the building useless and worthless.   Town Administrator Capone informed the 
committee that he recently received a permit to occupy the Old Town Hall.  The joint loss management 
group met at the Old Town Hall recently and would like to take a closer look at the roof and the attic to 
determine where the leaks are originating.  Mr. Thouin asked again if money was needed now to maintain 
the building.  Selectman Shackett stated that there was some money in the general building fund to take 
care of the necessary repairs. 
  
Mr. Campbell thanked the Budget Committee, the Town Administrator and the Select Board for working with 
the CIP.  He thinks this was the first time the CIP recommendations received serious considerations.  
Selectman Shackett thanked Mr. Campbell and the other member of the CIP for their work and said in trying 
to level fund the budget simply could not include all the CIP items in the budget.   
 
WARRANT ARTICLES 
Town Administrator Capone gave each member a draft of 4 proposed warrant articles.  He wanted the 
committee to be aware of what is being presented.  Two articles have gone to the DRA for wording. 
 
Mr. Carr stated that he has reservations regarding the revolving fund for the police department.  He can see 
problems when the Selectmen may want to use this money for another department or the Selectmen might 
be pressured into spending this money on unnecessary items.  He would like to see this money go to the 
general fund.  Vice Chairman Simard said in the past this was always an in/out account and shown in the 
Police Department.  Selectman Shackett explained if the Department is involved in a big project then the 
budget is up and down and hard to budget.  This revolving fund would allow detailed accounting instead of 
expenditures from the Police Department.  Many of the members questioned the current wording and would 
like it changed.   
  
Selectman Shackett stated that he knew a vote would not take place but would like some input from the 
committee members.  Chairman Lagueux asked each member to give a brief comment stating if they would 
support this article or not. Mr. Carr would not recommend this article.  Mr. Thouin commented that if this is a 
way to avoid the fluctuating budget then he is in favor but if it does not actually do that then do not change it.   
Ms. Gordon is not sure that the special details is a revenue producer and this article only confuses it even 
more.  Chairman Lagueux is in favor of the revolving fund to stop the fluctuating budget.  Vice Chairman 
Simard stated he did some research regarding the revolving fund and RSA 31 covers where any money 
produced can go into a special fund.   He added that in the past it was included in a separate line item and 
the wording for this fund needs to be specifically written. The Budget Committee can understand why the 
budget would fluctuate and see the changes.  He sees no problem with the way this item has been shown 
and is not in favor of this change.  Mr. Chevalier stated that the money should continue to go through the 
general fund.  It avoids having to look in another fund to find money if needed.  He is not in favor of this 
revolving fund.  Mr. Arseneau is opposed to this fund but if it were approved he would like to see the 
wording changed.  Mr. Preble does not like the wording that the money could accumulate year after year.  
There should be a set amount and any excess should go into the general fund.  He is opposed to this 
article.  Ms. Costigan would agree to the revolving fund if the Board of Selectmen approves it.  Ms. 
Greenwood is in favor of the article but the wording needs to be changed.  
 
WATER AND SEWER 
From Water and Sewer to raise and appropriate money for water and sewer improvements to the Central 
Square area during the Central Square project.  Selectman Shackett explained that the pipes are very old 
some from the 1800’s and it is wise to replace the water and sewer lines during the renovation of the Central 
Square.  Mr. Chevalier stated that it makes sense to do all the work now instead of just part of it.  Mr. Carr 
agreed stating that this it the best time to replace these pipes.  Mr. Shackett added that this work would be 
included in the Central Square Project bids, eliminating the need for separate engineering.  Ms. Gordon 



 
 

 
 

4 

asked if this would have an impact on user fees.  Selectman Shackett replied there are revenues available 
and we have a good chance of receiving the funds because we are trying to repair an existing issue rather 
than create a new system.  Chairman Lagueux added that it seems wise and prudent to do this work now 
and to do so without raising general taxes is a plus. 
 
LIBRARY 
Ms. Greenwood gave a brief description of the proposed new addition.  They Library Trustees will be 
meeting with the Select Board on Thursday 1/27 to discuss this proposed building project.  Selectman 
Shackett stated that the Select Board is waiting until after that meeting before it makes a statement 
regarding their position on this addition.  Mr. Arseneau added that if the people want this addition passed or 
not passed they need to come to the town meeting and vote.  Mr. Carr asked that the Library consider the 
30-year plan to make the annual cost lower.  Mr. Chevalier asked if the length of the loan be stated in the 
warrant article.  Town Administrator Capone replied that it can state it but it is not binding.  He also stated 
that this article needs a 2/3 in favor vote not majority vote. 
 
PETITION 
Town Administrator Capone stated that this petition is in place and his intent is to keep the budget 
committee informed.   

OTHER BUSINESS: 

Member Comments: 

Town Administrator Capone asked the Budget Committee if they needed to see all of the retirement and 
wage adjustments from taking the proposed wage increase from 1.5 percent to 1 percent corrected in both 
the Selectmen’s budget and the Budget Committee’s budget or could he just make them in the Budget 
Committee’s column.  The Committee was fine with just showing the corrections in their column.  The extra 
$668 in adjustments would be for the FICA and Medicare contributions to the employees who receive the 
Health Insurance Buyout. 
 
Selectman Shackett thanked Town Administrator for his tremendous work and assistance throughout this 
budget process.  Mr. Preble thanked the Select Board for their involvement this year. 
 

Town Administrator Comments: 

He reminded the committee members again that it is time to file for re-election.  This needs to be done by 
January 28 with the Town Clerk. 
 
Next Meeting: 

There was some discussion regarding the next meeting and the public hearing. Mr. Chevalier made a 
motion to meet for a regular meeting on 1/31 to review and vote to recommend or not recommend the 
warrant articles; and to schedule the public hearing for 2/7. Vice Chairman Simard seconded the motion.  It 
passed with 11 votes. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Vice Chairman Simard made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Chevalier.  Meeting 
adjourned at 8:50pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Emily Hemingway 
Recording Secretary 


